
Housing/Minutes (05 February 08) - 1 - 

 
 
 

 
SOUTH  OF  MARKET  PROJECT  AREA COMMITTEE  

 1035 FOLSOM STREET ●  SAN FRANCISCO, CA  ●  94103 
415.487.2166 Fax 415. 487.2169 ● website: http://www.sompac.com 

Advisory body to the San Francisco Redevelopment Agency 

 

 
HOUSING SUBCOMMITTEE 
Monday February 4, 2008 

6:00 PM 
Presiding Chair (6:00 PM)     Revised February 19, 2008  
Raymon Smith 
 
Chairs Report (6:00 PM) 
 
Determination of Quorum (6:00 PM)  
Present: Raymon Smith, John Melone/SAN, Charles Range/SOM Health Center (\6:29 PM), 
Antoinetta Stadlman and Henry Karnilowicz (/6:03 PM) 
 
Absent: Ingrid Aquino, Dipak Patel and Mark Swenson 
 
Staff: Marcia Ban and Karen Nolan 
 
Agency: Mike Grisso and Sally Oerth  
 
Guests: Barbara Gualco/Mercy Housing, Jessie Herzog and Tom Holt/AGI Capital 
 
Approval of minutes (6:01 PM) 
Motion: “To approve the January 2007 Housing Subcommittee minutes as is.” 
 
Vote:  Yes: 3  No: 0  Abstain: 0  Motion Passes 
 
Agenda order (6:03 PM)  
1,2,3,4,5,6,7,8,9,10,11,12,13,14 
Motion: “To approve the Housing Subcommittee agenda tabling item 13 until next month.” 
 
Vote:  Yes: 4  No: 0  Abstain: 0  Motion Passes 
 
Announcement of Next Housing Subcommittee Meeting 
Mr. Smith announced that the next Housing Subcommittee would meet on Monday March 3rd, 
2008 at 6:00 PM. 
 
Agenda Item 6. Cost Estimates for Westbrook Plaza by Agency Staff (6:04 PM) 
Ms. Oerth announced that she is here tonight to update members on the timetable for the 
Westbrook Plaza cost estimates. The Agency will be taking the updated figures to the 
Commission on March 18th and they are currently looking at the figures. More funding is 
needed, but they don’t have the exact figures yet. 
 
Mr. Smith wanted to know if the Agency were looking at specific construction costs or a ballpark 
figure because we have not had a formal presentation. Ms. Oerth responded that the total cost 
of the project will be approximately $41 million and they will be making a new request for 



Housing/Minutes (05 February 08) - 2 - 

approximately $7 million in March. She explained that they are targeting the Commission 
meeting of March 18th because they are mindful of the tax credit deadline near the end of 
March. Ms. Oerth stated that the loan committee will meet on February 29th and she will present 
the information at the March Housing Subcommittee. Mr. Smith requested that information be 
provided to the subcommittee prior to the meeting for members to review before the meeting on 
March 3rd. 
 
Agenda Item 7. Update on the Completion of the Seneca Hotel Work by Agency Staff 
(6:06 PM) 
Mr. Grisso announced that the elevator work at the Seneca Hotel will be complete on February 
19th, but they cannot get the required inspection until March 11th. Ms. Stadlman wanted to know 
why the delay between the completion of work and the inspection. Mr. Grisso stated that it is a 
State agency that must do the inspection. Mr. Karnilowicz stated that once you complete a job, 
the State agency takes three to four weeks to do the inspection. 
 
Mr. Smith announced that he met with the manager of the Seneca on an unrelated issue 
regarding residents throwing things out of the windows. The manager is working on this 
problem. Mr. Melone stated that he thought management and THC were supposed to be here 
tonight to address this problem. Mr. Smith stated that he met with the management and they 
assured him the problem would be dealt with so it is not necessary for them to attend tonight’s 
meeting. 
 
Ms. Stadlman wanted to know what the management intends to do because they are famous 
for stating that they will address problems, but then nothing happens. Mr. Smith stated that 
management will notify all tenants and see if this helps the problem. Mr. Karnilowicz suggested 
that the management place screens on all of the windows to enable management to know who 
is throwing things out the windows and they could then address the problem with the residents 
that are causing the problem. Mr. Smith suggested that Mr. Karnilowicz contact the 
management about this since he has a direct relationship with them. 
 
Agenda Item 8. 474 Natoma Update by Agency Staff (6:11 PM) 
Mr. Grisso announced that the Agency is currently awaiting feedback from the Planning 
Department on the design of the 474 Natoma Street project. They will be meeting with the 
Planning Department to review the overall timeframe of the project. Mr. Smith wanted to know if 
the Agency would bring the project to the Housing Subcommittee for approval before going to 
the Planning Department for approval. Mr. Grisso stated that they are going back and forth with 
the Planning Department now and it will depend on any questions the Planning Department 
might have and how quick the Agency can respond. They will update the Housing 
Subcommittee next month with a more accurate timetable.  
 
Agenda Item 9. Reallocation of Remaining $1.2 million in SRO Funds by Raymon Smith 
(6:13 PM) 
Mr. Smith referred to the remaining $1.2 million in SRO funds and stated that this 
subcommittee has never made a recommendation to the full PAC as to what should be done 
with these funds. Mr. Range questioned whether these funds were restricted to affordable 
housing. Mr. Grisso stated that they are. Mr. Range suggested that we review the housing 
goals & objectives to see what we would like to do with these funds. He reminded everyone that 
this is not a lot of money and we should determine how the funds could be leveraged. Mr. 
Range stated that if we are looking at a capital project it could take years. 
 
Ms. Stadlman stated that these funds should be used for one project and not broken down into 
smaller loans that will never be accessed. Mr. Karnilowicz stated that he would echo what Mr. 
Range stated. He informed members that some projects are looking to add a couple of stories 
to already complete buildings and we should wait and see before deciding how these funds 



Housing/Minutes (05 February 08) - 3 - 

should be spent. Mr. Range reminded everyone that the Hugo Hotel is a project that may be 
coming up and we should wait and see before making a decision on these funds. 
 
Mr. Melone stated that the original intent of the Project Area was to replace units lost in the 
earthquake and this has not been done. He stated that we have a need for very low-income 
housing. Mr. Smith stated that the original intent of the SRO Loan Program was to rehabilitate 
hotels. He does not see the intent of the funds as being used to buy and develop new property, 
but to develop existing properties. 
 
Ms. Stadlman stated that the original intent of the program was to make relatively small 
upgrades in existing buildings that would require owners to participate in a bureaucratic process 
that they are not willing to do. You would need to change the entire program if you ever expect 
hotel owners to participate. 
 
Mr. Range referred to Mr. Melone’s comments regarding the lost units and stated that it was 
his understanding that we not only replaced the lost units, we exceeded the number of units 
lost. Mr. Grisso stated that this is correct. Mr. Range stated that if there are funds in the Plan 
for low-income housing then we must first gain control of a site. Mr. Grisso pointed out that the 
most expensive part of building low-income housing is not purchasing the site; it is developing 
the building. He stated that we should not be looking for other property until we know what will 
happen with the Hugo Hotel. Mr. Grisso reminded everyone that $1.2 million is not enough 
funding to purchase and develop a site. After some discussion Ms. Stadlman made a motion 
and Mr. Melone seconded the motion. 
Motion: “The Housing Subcommittee recommends setting aside the $1.2 million remaining in 
the SRO Rehabilitation Loan Program for the next opportunity to develop low and very low-
income property.” 
 
A roll call vote was taken. 
 
Those voting Yes: Raymon Smith, John Melone/SAN and Antoinetta Stadlman 
 
Those voting No: Charles Range/SOM Health Center and Henry Karnilowicz 
 
Those Abstaining: 0 
 
Vote:  Yes: 3  No: 2  Abstain: 0  Motion Passes 
 
Mr. Range expressed concern of locking funds into very specific goals as this could cause 
problems later. He reminded everyone that we do not control the Agency budget, the Mayor 
does. If we give ourselves a range of affordability options we are not locking ourselves in. 
 
Agenda Item 10. Hugo Hotel Update by Agency Staff (6:28 PM) 
Mr. Grisso announced that on January 15th the Commission voted to initiate the eminent 
domain process on the Hugo Hotel. He stated that the Agency now has six months to file suit. 
For now the Agency is waiting to see what happens and will continue to try and negotiate with 
the owner. Mr. Karnilowicz wanted to know what the difference in price was. Mr. Grisso stated 
that it is a significant difference of approximately $3 million. The Agency appraisal came in at 
$3.25 million and the owner states that the property is worth $6 million. Mr. Grisso stated that 
the Agency could not use taxpayer dollars to pay more for the property than what it is worth. 
 
Mr. Smith stated that we can continue to discuss this, but there is no action to take at this time 
and we should move on. Mr. Karnilowicz stated that members should be able to ask questions 
regardless of the process and he would like to know how many appraisals have been done. Mr. 
Grisso stated that the Agency did one appraisal and the owner did one appraisal and a third 



Housing/Minutes (05 February 08) - 4 - 

appraisal will now be done. Mr. Smith asked Mr. Grisso if we have not discussed this over and 
over in the past. Mr. Grisso stated that we have.  
 
Agenda Item 11. Presentation on the 900 Folsom/260 5th Street Project by AGI Capital 
(6:33 PM) 
Mr. Holt and Mr. Herzog of AGI Capital presented the concept design for the development 
located at 900 Folsom/260 5th Street. 
 
Mr. Holt displayed the design of the project and stated that they would be building to 85 feet 
and will need conditional use permits from the Planning Department if the East SOMA Plan has 
not been approved before they commence development. They will build a LEED/Gold 
development so the project will have the benefit of being expedited through the Planning 
process. Mr. Holt stated that they are currently in the middle of the EIR process. Concerns have 
been expressed of the mass of height along Folsom Street so they have scaled back the 
design. There will be four stories on Clementina Street where they are looking to have two 
stacks of two-story town homes. 
 
Mr. Holt stated that other groups have stated that they would like to see a mix of uses in the 
project and one idea is to provide space on Clementina for flex space (i.e. live/work). The 
project will provide 5,000 square feet of retail space on 5th Street and another 5,000 square feet 
on Folsom Street. They will provide approximately 2500 square feet of space to a non profit 
museum on 5th Street as a part of the community benefits package. 
 
The project will be going to the architect soon for the design phase. Mr. Herzog stated that AGI 
is aware of concerns regarding traffic and he explained that there are currently 270 parking 
spaces on the surface parking lot at this location. The Planning Department is currently 
reviewing the transportation study. The 1:1 parking proposed for this project will cause 
approximately 60 in and outs during peak hours. Another major impact of this project is the 
community benefits. AGI will increase the landscape on Clementina Street where the town 
homes will have stoops facing the street and they will provide approximately 60 affordable units 
on-site. The community impact fees will be $3 per square foot or $1.25 million to the Eastern 
Neighborhoods and the tax increment funding for the Project Area will be enough to support a 
$10 million bond. Yerba Buena has a Community Benefits District that will provide an additional 
$2 million for police, graffiti abatement, power washing, hanging baskets, etc. in the YBC area. 
AGI Capital is currently planting 24 trees on Tehama Street. Mr. Herzog referred to the non 
profit museum and stated that they are in negotiations at this time. 
 
Mr. Holt stated that this project will be built as a LEED/gold development and will be the first 
project of this size in San Francisco. 
 
Ms. Stadlman referred to the 60 affordable units and wanted to know the bedroom count and 
the affordability levels of these units. Mr. Holt stated that the maximum number of units in the 
project will be 475, but he is not sure yet of the mix or size of the units. Ms. Stadlman referred 
to the “green” building and wanted to know how much of the project would be “green”. Mr. Holt 
explained that the building is being built in an infill urban location and they receive points based 
on various things such as proximity to transportation, etc. The building will be built to the 
LEED/gold standards, which means they will use low-emitting carpets and paint. They are under 
strict energy requirements that are listed on the website. Members can visit this website at 
www.usgbc.org. 
 
Ms. Stadlman wanted to know what the payoff is for building green. Mr. Holt explained that this 
is the way all real estate is heading. The financial incentive is that your project gets expedited 
through the planning review process. Mr. Karnilowicz stated that LEED/gold is good for the 
property owners due to the low energy costs. He wanted to know if the project would be 



Housing/Minutes (05 February 08) - 5 - 

providing residential/commercial space on Folsom and 5th Streets. Mr. Holt stated that Folsom 
Street will be residential and 5th Street will have retail with residential above. Mr. Karnilowicz 
wanted to know if the project would be set back on the street level. Mr. Holt stated that they are 
not sure at this time as people have expressed concerns that setbacks attract people sleeping 
in doorways. 
 
Mr. Melone wanted to know where the parking lot entrance and exits would be located. Mr. Holt 
stated that they would be on Clementina Street. Mr. Melone asked if they could not be moved 
to Folsom Street. Mr. Holt explained that the Planning Department does not want the parking 
entrance and exit on Folsom Street. Mr. Grisso stated that the policy is not to have parking 
entrances and exits on main arteries. 
 
Mr. Melone stated that in order to go to 85 feet, AGI will need conditional use and he wanted to 
know if this would mean roughly 60 affordable units at what affordability levels. Mr. Holt stated 
that 15% of the units are required to be affordable and it will most likely be more since they are 
not sure yet of the maximum number of units. If the affordability level is at 100% of AMI, it could 
be 17% affordable. Mr. Holt stated that he is aware that the neighbors want more affordable 
units and they could possibly do 15% of the units at 100% AMI and perhaps an additional 5% 
percent at 150-175% AMI. These affordability levels sound high, but they are within the salary 
range of teachers, police officers, etc. 
 
Mr. Smith stated that he would like to commend AGI for listening to the community. He wanted 
to know how much green space would be provided on site. Mr. Holt stated that they are trying 
to meet the Eastern Neighborhoods requirements of 80 square feet per unit. They are looking at 
balconies, some open space on the roof and a mid-block landscaped walk-thru. They will also 
be doing alley improvements on Clementina Street. Mr. Holt stated that they will need the 
architectural plans and details worked out in the next 30-60 days for the EIR. Mr. Smith stated 
that he would like to see the project further developed before making a recommendation to the 
full PAC. 
 
Mr. Grisso referred to the alley improvements on Clementina Street and suggested that Mr. 
Herzog and Mr. Holt attend the Alley Streetscape community meeting on Thursday night at 
6:00 PM to review the design for the other alleys in the area. 
 
Agenda Item 12. Affirmation of Housing Subcommittee Chair by Raymon Smith (6:53 PM) 
Mr. Smith announced that he has heard rumblings of how the Housing Subcommittee is being 
run and he would like for members to either affirm him as the chair, or elect a new chair. 
 
Ms. Stadlman stated that she would like to see this item tabled until next month as there are 
only a few members in attendance tonight and she would like to give all members of the 
subcommittee the opportunity to vote. Mr. Smith agreed to table this item until next month. He 
stated that his personal opinion is that we should look into revising our bylaws. He believes that 
if a member misses five subcommittee meetings in one year, they should lose their membership 
on the PAC. Mr. Smith stated that we need the brain power of all our members and with only 
three members attending subcommittee meetings we are not serving the public as we should. 
This is unfair to the public. 
 
Agenda Item 13. Housing Goals & Objectives for FY 2008-09 by Raymon Smith (7:00) 
Tabled until March. 
 
Agenda Item 14. Committee Member Announcements (7:00 PM) 
Mr. Karnilowicz requested an item be placed on next month’s agenda for the Sharon Hotel. Mr. 
Grisso reminded Mr. Karnilowicz that he could not present or speak on this item due to a 
conflict of interest. Mr. Smith requested information on the Sharon prior to the meeting. 



Housing/Minutes (05 February 08) - 6 - 

 
Mr. Smith announced that the Pedestrian Safety Advisory Council is sponsoring a proposal. He 
would like to have SOMPAC on board as a supporter. Mr. Smith would urge everyone to attend 
the HS & HS Subcommittee tomorrow where the pedestrian safety grant will be presented for 
review. 
 
Public Comment (7:03 PM) 
 
 
Meeting Ends (7:04 PM) 
 

 

 

 

 

Raymon Smith 
Chair 


